Public Document Pack

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Wednesday

730 pm 13 January 2021

Virtual Meeting

Members 12: Quorum 4

COUNCILLORS:

Conservative Group Residents’ Group Upminster & Cranham
(6) (2) Residents’Group
Robert Benham Ray Morgon Linda Hawthorn
Joshua Chapman Barry Mugglestone

Roger Ramsey
Damian White (Vice-Chair)
Viddy Persaud
Ciaran White (Chairman)

Independent Labour Group North Havering Residents
Residents’ Group (1) Group (1
(1)
David Durant Keith Darvill Martin Goode

For information about the meeting please contact:
Debra Marlow tel: 01708 433091
e-mail: debra.marlow@onesource.co.uk




Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

=1

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed?

A4

Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):

= any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;

+ any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor's election expenses from a Trade Union;

+ any land licence or tenancy they have in Havering

= any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;

« any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in Havering
in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and securities;

« any organisation which has land or a place of business in Havering and in which they have a relevant interest in its
shares or its securities.

rrP=200mwaomo

“—omaoam-H=Z "~

<Ar—"Z2CcOmTm

- ;mmam-Z=

YES Declare Interest and Leave

Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)

* Your well-being or financial position; or

* The well-being or financial position of:

o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or

- Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are
a partner, or any company of which they are directors;

- Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;

o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or

o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose
principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a
member or in a position of general control or management?

You must disclose the fo)
existence and nature of your
personal interests

AV4

Would a member of the public, with

knowledge of the relevant facts, You can participate in the

meeting and vote (or
remain in the room if not a
member of the meeting)

interest to be so significant that it is NO

likely to prejudice your

reasonably regard your personal >

Y
E
S

- Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body
through whom you have a personal interest?

- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects
you or any person or body with which you have a personal interest? NO
- Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?

Y
E
s

Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of
corruption or bias




Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

AGENDA ITEMS
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

2 PROTOCOL ON THE OPERATION OF GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS
DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC RESTRICTIONS (Pages 1 - 4)

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE & SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
(If any) - receive
4 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this
point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in any item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

5 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 16)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Committee held on 12 August
2020, and to authorise the Chairman to sign them.

6 APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER ORGANISATIONS 2020/21 (Pages 17 - 20)
7 STAFF EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES (Pages 21 - 46)

8 TEMPORARY CHANGES TO POLLING STATIONS DUE TO COVID19 - GLA
ELECTIONS 6TH MAY 2021 (Pages 47 - 96)

Andrew Beesley
Head of Democratic Services



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAVERING

PROTOCOL ON THE OPERATION OF GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS
DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC RESTRICTIONS

1. Introduction

In accordance with the Local Authority and Police Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panels Meetings (England and
Wales) Regulations 2020, all Governance Committee Meetings held during the Covid-
19 restrictions will take place using a ‘virtual’ format. This document aims to give
details on how the meetings will take place and establish some rules of procedure to
ensure that all parties find the meetings productive.

2. Prior to the Meeting

Once the date for a meeting has been set, an electronic appointment will be sent to all
relevant parties. This will include a link to access the virtual meeting as well as
guidance on the use of the technology involved.

3. Format

For the duration of the Covid-19 restrictions period, all Governance meetings will be

delivered through conference call, using Zoom software. This can be accessed using
a PC, laptop or mobile/landline telephone etc. and the instructions sent with meeting
appointments will cover how to do this.

4, Structure of the Meeting

Although held in a virtual format, Governance Committee meetings will follow the usual
procedure.

5. Technology Issues

An agenda setting out the items for the meeting will be issued in advance, to all parties
in accordance with statutory timetables. This will include details of reports to be
considered and any other relevant documents. The agenda will also be published on
the Council’s website — www.havering.gov.uk in the normal way.

All parties should be aware that the sheer volume of virtual meetings now taking place
across the country has placed considerable strain upon broadband network
infrastructure. As a result, Zoom meetings may experience intermittent faults whereby
participants lose contact for short periods of time before reconnecting to the call. The
guidance below explains how the meeting is to be conducted, including advice on what
to do if participants cannot hear the speaker and etiquette of participants during the
call.

Page 1


http://www.havering.gov.uk/

Members and the public will be encouraged to use any Zoom video conferencing
facilities provided by the Council to attend a meeting remotely. If this is not possible,
attendance may be through an audio link or by other electronic means.

Remote access for members of the public and Members who are not attending to
participate in the meeting, together with access for the Press, will be provided via a
webcast of the meeting at www.havering.gov.uk.

If the Chairman is made aware that the meeting is not accessible to the public through
remote means, due to any technological or other failure of provision, then the Chair
shall temporarily adjourn the meeting immediately. If the provision of access through
remote means cannot be restored within a reasonable period, then the remaining
business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chairman. If he or she
does not fix a date, the remaining business will be considered at the next scheduled
ordinary meeting of Governance Committee.

6. Management of Remote Meetings for Members

The Chairman will normally confirm at the outset and at any reconvening of a
Governance Committee meeting that they can see and hear all participating members.
Any Member participating remotely should also confirm at the outset and at any
reconvening of the meeting that they can see and hear the proceedings and the other
participants.

The attendance of Members at the meeting will be recorded by the Democratic
Services Officer. The normal quorum requirements for meetings as set out in the
Council’'s Constitution will also apply to a remote meeting.

If a connection to a Member is lost during a meeting of the Board, the Chair will stop
the meeting to enable the connection to be restored. If the connection cannot be
restored within a reasonable time, the meeting will proceed, but the Member who was
disconnected will not be able to vote on the matter under discussion given that they
would not have heard all the discussion.

Any Member participating in a remote meeting who declares a disclosable pecuniary
interest, or other declarable interest, in any item of business that would normally
require them to leave the room, must also leave the remote meeting. The Democratic
Services Officer or meeting facilitator, will confirm the departure and will also invite the
relevant Member by link, email or telephone to re-join the meeting at the appropriate
time, using the original meeting invitation.

7. Voting at the Governance Committee

Voting at the Governance Committee will take place by show of hands using the raised
hands functionality on the Zoom application.

Page 2


http://www.havering.gov.uk/

8. After the Meeting - Public Access to Meeting Documentation following the
meeting

Members of the public may access minutes, decisions and other relevant documents
through the Council’s website. www.havering.gov.uk

Page 3


http://www.havering.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Public Document Pack Agenda Iltem 5

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Virtual Meeting By Zoom
12 August 2020 (7.30 - 8.35 pm)

Present:

COUNCILLORS

Conservative Group Robert Benham, Roger Ramsey, Damian White (Vice-
Chair), Viddy Persaud, Ciaran White (Chairman) and
Dilip Patel

Residents’ Group Ray Morgon

Upminster & Cranham Linda Hawthorn
Residents’ Group

Independent Residents

Group
Labour Group Keith Darvill
North Havering Martin Goode

Residents Group

The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency.

1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting which was a virtual
meeting and webcast.

2 PROTOCOL ON THE OPERATION OF GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
MEETINGS DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC RESTRICTIONS

The Chairman went through the protocol for virtual meetings.
3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE & SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

Apologies were received from Councillors Chapman, Durant and
Mugglestone. Councillor Dilip Patel substituted for Councillor Chapman.

4 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 5



Governance Committee, 12 Auqust 2020

5 APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER ORGANISATIONS, 2020/2021

The Chairman of the meeting referred to the appointments detailed in the
agenda to which members would be elected. All Groups had been invited to
supply their nominations.

The Executive Appointments were noted by the Committee and are
appended to these minutes.

The Appointments to Other Organisations were considered as per the
agenda and a vote taken as necessary by show of hands. The results are
documented and attached to these minutes.

6 UPDATING THE COUNCIL'S POLICY AND PROCEDURES ON RIPA

The Governance Committee gave consideration to the report, which was
presented, to the Committee by Loogman Desai. This detailed a recent
routine inspection of the Council’s covert surveillance procedures, which are
governed by the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, known as
RIPA. The inspection went well and there were no formal recommendations
however, the inspector did indicate that the Council’s Policy should further
incorporate some of the Statutory Home Office Guidance in relation to the
use of the internet and instances in relation to those offering information
voluntarily under RIPA and those registered as informants.

These recommendations were presented to the Committee in the Agenda
as the new Appendices C and D to the current Policy within Appendix 1 to
the report. It was noted that there was a minor error denoting “appendix C”
twice. However, if approved this would be incorporated into the policy
correctly.

There followed some discussion. The Governance Committee receives an
annual report each year in relation to RIPA, last before the Governance
Committee in March 2020. Over the past year, the Council has not made
any applications under RIPA.

The Committee noted the additions to the policy contained within the
new appendices C and D to the policy and recommended to the Lead
Member that these additions be incorporated.

Chairman

Page 6



T abed

Appointments to other Organisations 2020/21

ORGANISATION AND NUMBER OF
APPOINTEES

MEMBER APPOINTED
(Non Executive Appointments)

COMMENTS AND NOTES

Adoption & Permanency Panel-2

Clir Christine Smith and Clir Robert Benham

Nominations: Cllr R Benham and Clir
G Ford.

Vote taken. Clir Robert Benham
appointed with 8 votes. (Clirs D White,
C White, K Darvill, R Ramsey, D
Patel, M Goode, V Persaud and R
Benham)

Citizens Advice Havering - 2

Clir Michael Deon Burton and VACANCY

No vote required

Coopers Company & Coborn Educational
Foundation

Clir Chris Wilkins

No vote required

Essex Wildlife Trust
(Bedfords Park Management Committee)

Clir Ray Best

No vote required

Governor Panel - 3

Cllr Robert Benham, Cllr Viddy Persaud and Cllr Paul
McGeary

Nominations: Clir Ford and ClIr
Persaud

Vote taken ClIr Persaud appointed
with 7 votes (Clirs D White, C White,
R Ramsey, D Patel, R Benham, M
Goode and V Persaud.

Havering Arts Council - 5

ClIr Jason Frost, ClIr Tim Ryan, Clir Joshua
Chapman, Clir Christine Vickery and Cllr. Carol
Smith

Nominations: Cllirs T Lawal, C Smith,
C Vickery. Vote taken:

Clir C Smith 7 votes (Clirs C White, D
White, R Ramsey, R Benham, m
Goode and V Persaud.

Clir C Vickery 6 votes (Cllrs C White,
R Ramsey, Dilip Patel, R Benham and
V Persaud

Cllrs Smith and Vickery appointed.

o} SINuiN

| W Y W |

Lt

May 2020

Q



g obed

Appointments to other Organisations 2020/21

ORGANISATION AND NUMBER OF
APPOINTEES

MEMBER APPOINTED
(Non Executive Appointments)

COMMENTS AND NOTES

Havering Association for People with
Disabilities - 2

ClIr Christine Smith and Clir Sally Miller

Nominations: Clirs C Smith, S Miller
and S Nunn.

Cllrs C Smith and S Miller appointed
with 7 Votes (Cllrs C White, D White,
R Ramsey, Dilip Patel, M Goode, V
Persaud and R Benham.)

Havering Bands and Majorettes
Association- Executive Committee - 3

Cllr Reg Whitney, CllIr Osman Dervish and ClIr Denis
O’Flynn

No vote required

Havering Chamber of Commerce and
Industry

Cllr Jason Frost

No vote required

Havering Children’s Trust

Cabinet Member for Education, Children & Families
— Cllr Robert Benham

No vote required

Havering Community Safety Partnership —
2

Cabinet Member for Public Protection and Safety —
ClIr Viddy Persaud the Chief Executive — Andrew
Blake-Herbert

No vote required

Havering Joint Forum - 6

Leader of the Council — Clir Damian White,
Deputy Leader of the Council — Cllr Robert Benham,
Leader of the Opposition Group — Clir Ray Morgon

No vote required

May 2020




6 obed

Appointments to other Organisations 2020/21

Clir Michael White
Clir Linda Hawthorn
Clir Keith Darvill

ORGANISATION AND NUMBER OF
APPOINTEES

MEMBER APPOINTED
(Non Executive Appointments)

COMMENTS AND NOTES

Havering Local Board (formerly Havering
Sixth Form College & Havering College of
Further and Higher Education)- 1

Mrs Wendy Brice Thompson (till 30 September
2020) and thereafter, Cllr Sally Miller (until October
2024)

No vote required

Havering Sports Council - 5

Cabinet Member for Public Protection and Safety —
ClIr Viddy Persaud, ClIr Ciaran White, ClIr Sally
Miller, ClIr Dilip Patel and Clir. Timothy Ryan

Nominations Clirs Lawal, Ryan and D
Patel. Cllrs Ryan and D Patel
appointed with 7 votes each (C White,
D White, R Ramsey, V Persaud, M
Goode, R Benham and D Patel).

Havering Theatre Trust - 3

Clir Melvin Wallace, CllIr. Christine Smith and ClIr
Paul McGeary

Nominations Clirs M Wallace, P
McGeary, C Smith and G Ford. Clirs
M Wallace, P McGeary and C Smith
appointed with 7 votes each (C White,
D White, R Ramsey, V Persaud, M
Goode, R Benham and D Patel).

May 2020




Appointments to other Organisations 2020/21

Hornchurch Housing Trust (Nomination
Trustees) - 6

oPbbead

Cllr Damian White and ClIr Carol Smith (until
February 2021)

Cllr John Mylod and ClIr Nic Dodin (until February
2022)

Cllr Joshua Chapman and Clir Melvin Wallace (until
February 2023)

No vote required

Cllr Chapman , Clir Mylod & ClIr
Wallace appointments agreed at
Governance on 7.03.19

ORGANISATION AND NUMBER OF
APPOINTEES

MEMBER APPOINTED
(Non Executive Appointments)

COMMENTS AND NOTES

Local Government Association General
Assembly - 4

Leader of the Council = Cllr Damian White,
Councillor Osman Dervish

Councillor Robert Benham

Councillor Michael White

No vote required

Local Government Information Unit - 1

Councillor Robert Benham

No Vote required

London Home & Water Safety Council -1

Cabinet Member for Environment — Cllr Osman
Dervish

No vote required

May 2020




Tg abed

Appointments to other Organisations 2020/21

London Road Safety Council - 2

Clir Robert Benham and Cllr Osman Dervish

No vote required

London Youth Games-1

Cabinet Member for Public Protection and Safety —
ClIr Viddy Persaud

No vote required

Lucas Children’s Play Charity Nominative
Trustees — 2

Cabinet Member for Education, Children & Families
(Cllr Robert Benham) and Cabinet Member for
Environment (Cllr Osman Dervish) appointed till
November 2023)

Agreed at Governance on 14.11.19

ORGANISATION AND NUMBER OF
APPOINTEES

MEMBER APPOINTED
(Non Executive Appointments)

COMMENTS AND NOTES

North East London NHS Foundation Trust
-1

Director of Adult Services — Barbara Nicholls

No vote required

Poyntz (a.ka. Richard Poyntry’s) and
other charities

Cllr Linda Hawthorn (until March 2024)

No vote required

Relate North East - 2

Cllr Viddy Persaud and ClIr Carol Smith

No vote required

Reserve Forces & Cadets Association -1

Cllr John Mylod

Nominations: Cllrs B Mugglestone and
Cllr John Mylod. Clir Mylod appointed
with 7 votes (C White, D White, R
Ramsey, V Persaud, M Goode, R
Benham and D Patel).

May 2020




Appointments to other Organisations 2020/21

Romford Town Management Partnership

Cllr Robert Benham and Cllr Joshua Chapman

Romford Combined Charity
Nominative Trustees — 2

Councillor Joshua Chapman (until 3.11.20) and

Mrs Wendy Brice Thompson and Councillor Dilip
Patel (until 3.11.22)

Councillor Melvin Wallace (until 3.11.23)

Cllr Wallace’s appointment agreed by
Governance on 14 November 2019

Safer Neighbourhood Board

gPbbad

Cabinet Member for Public Protection and Safety —
Cllr Viddy Persaud

No vote required

ORGANISATION AND NUMBER OF
APPOINTEES

MEMBER APPOINTED
(Non Executive Appointments)

COMMENTS AND NOTES

Sight Action Havering

Cllr Christine Smith

No vote required

Standing Advisory Council for Religious
Education (SACRE) - 5

ClIr Philippa Crowder, Cllr Judith Holt, Cllr Osman
Dervish, Cllr Jason Frost and ClIr Viddy Persaud

Nominations: Clirs Frost, Dervish,
Persaud, Nunn, Ford and Lawal.

Clirs Frost, Dervish and Persaud
appointed with 7 votes each (C White,
D White, R Ramsey, V Persaud, M
Goode, R Benham and D Patel).

Tenant Management Organisations - 3

BETRA (Gooshays) — Cllr Paul McGeary
DELTA (Squirrels Heath)- Cllr Melvin Wallace

No vote required

May 2020




o1 obed

Appointments to other Organisations 2020/21

PETRA (St Andrews’) — ClIr John Mylod

Veolia ES Cleanaway Havering Riverside
Trust-1

Cllr Robert Benham

No vote required

Wennington Quarry Community Liaison
Committee- 1 (until May 2022)

ClIr Paul McGeary

No vote required

May 2020




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



G obed

PPOINTMENTS RECOMMENDED BY THE COUNCIL TO OTHER ORGANISATIONS, 2020/21

ORGANISATION AND NUMBER OF
APPOINTEES

EXECUTIVE MEMBER APPOINTMENTS

CEME (Centre for Engineering &
Manufacturing Excellence) - 1

East London Waste Authority - 2
East London Waste Authority Board

(officer)

London Councils
(Leaders’ Committee)

Transport & Environment Committee

Grants Committee

May 2020

Director of Regeneration Programme Delivery

Cllr Osman Dervish and Cllr Robert Benham

Director of Neighbourhoods

Representative (1): Leader of the Council — Clir Damian White
Deputy: (1) Deputy Leader of the Council — Cllr Robert Benham
(2) Cllr Roger Ramsey
Representative (1): Cllr Osman Dervish
Deputies (up to 4): ClIr Jason Frost
ClIr Viddy Persaud
Cllr Robert Benham
Cllr Roger Ramsey

Representative (1): Clir Viddy Persaud

Deputy (up to 4):  ClIr Jason Frost

Amended by CE
31.5.19




oT abed

Appointments to other organisations, 2018/19

Pensions CIV (Sectorial Joint Committee)

Greater London Employment Forum

Newable (formerly Greater London
Enterprise Limited ) -1

London Riverside (BID) Ltd

Thames Gateway Strategic Group

Representative (1): Chairman of Pensions Committee — Clir John
Crowder

Deputy (up to 2): Cllr Jason Frost and Clir Joshua Chapman
Representative (1): Clir Robert Benham

Deputy Representative (1): Clir Viddy Persaud

Leader of the Council — Cllr Damian White

Representative (1): Leader of the Council — Clir Robert Benham

Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Environment - Clir
Damian White and Cllr Osman Dervish



_ Agenda Item 6
%¢ Havering

it L ONDON BOROUGH

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
13 January 2021

Subject Heading: APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER
ORGANISATIONS, 2020/21

SLT Lead: Abdus Choudhury

Deputy Director of Legal & Governance
abdus.choudhury@onesource.co.uk
01708 432741

Report Author and contact details: Jacqui Barr

Senior Democratic Services Support
Officer
jacqui.barr@onesource.co.uk

01708 432439

Policy context: The Council appoints Members and
others to serve on a variety of other
bodies

Financial summary: There are no significant financial
implications.

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

Communities making Havering [
Places making Havering i
Opportunities making Havering N
Connections making Havering (X]

SUMMARY

The Council makes appointments to a large number of other organisations, some
statutory, others voluntary.

Since the executive governance arrangements were revised, responsibility for
making some appointments has passed from this Committee to the Leader of the
Council but the Constitution provides that in the case of non-executive
appointments, it is for this Committee to make decisions

Page 17


mailto:abdus.choudhury@onesource.co.uk

Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee:

1.

11

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

1. In respect of the Romford combined Charites APPOINT a
Nominative Trustee of the Committee to serve until November
2024.

2. In respect of the Poyntz Charity APPOINT a Trustee to serve until
March 2024

REPORT DETAIL

THE ROMFORD COMBINED CHARITY

The Romford Combined Charity is a small, local charity that makes grants
for the relief of poverty. It has seven Trustees: one ex officio Chair, the Vicar
of St Edward’s C of E Church, Romford; four nominative, appointed for four-
year terms by the Council; and two co-optative, who are co-opted for five-
year terms by the other five Trustees.

The term of office of Councillor Joshua Chapman expired on 3 November
2020. Councillor Chapman is eligible for re-appointment and has indicated
that he wishes to continue in his role as a Trustee. Councillor Chapman has
been a Trustee of the Charity since November 2014. It should be noted that
Trustees need not be Members of the Council.

The remaining nominative Trustees are Mrs Wendy Brice-Thompson and
Councillor Dilip Patel (appointed until November 2022) and Councillor
Melvin Wallace (appointed until November 2023).

POYNTZ CHARITY

This is a small charity that administers funds to local people in need and
oversees a group of alms-houses based in North Ockendon. The Council
appoints three of the Trustees, though the Vicar of St Mary Magdalene’s,
North Ockendon is an ex officio position. Trustees can be elected Members,
but it is not a requirement of the scheme of appointment.

In August 2020, Governance Committee appointed Councillor Linda
Hawthorn as one of the Trustees to the Board. There remains one vacancy.

Page 18



Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

2.3  Councillor Ron Ower has indicated that he wishes to be appointed to the
vacant position. The term of office would expire in March 2024.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks: None

Legal implications and risks:

These appointments are administrative and have no direct legal, financial or
environmental implications or risks. In some cases, membership of an
organisation is dependent upon the Council paying a subscription: where relevant,
the subscription will be met from within an appropriate budget provision.

Members who sit on outside bodies will need to consider whether (a) they are
required to register their interests with the Council and, where appropriate, declare
the interests at meetings and (b) seek advice when they are potentially involved in
Council decisions that may affect the outside body. As there is no remuneration for
the appointments, they are very unlikely to be discloseable pecuniary interests.
Trustee status means that the trustee must always act in the best interests of the
trust. The Monitoring Officer is available to provide advice as and when necessary.

Human Resources implications and risks: There are none directly associated
with this report.
Equalities implications and risks:

There are no specific implications or risks. Appointments should be made with the
Council’s equalities policies in mind.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Subject Heading: Staff Employment Procedure Rules

SLT Lead: Andrew Blake-Herbert
Chief Executive

Report Author and Contact Details: Ben Plant

Director of HR and Organisational
Development

ben.plant@onesource.co.uk

Loogman Desai

Interim Principal and Corporate
Governance Lawyer

loogman.desai@onesource.co.uk

Policy Context: Governance

Financial Summary: None

The subject matter of this report deals with the following council objectives:

Communities making Havering
Places making Havering
Opportunities making Havering
Connections making Havering

,_”_|,_|,_|
[ Sy S _—

SUMMARY

This report seeks approval of proposed changes to Part 5 of the Constitution, which
contains the Staff Employment Procedure Rules (“the Rules”). The proposed
changes are designed to update and generally improve the Rules.

Page 21



Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee:

11

1.2

consider and comment on the proposed Rules attached at Appendix B

decide which Deputy Chief Officer posts should be appointed to by members
and which, if any, should be appointed to by officers (four options are presented
at Appendix C)

decide if the decision to take disciplinary action against or dismiss Deputy Chief
Officers should be made by members or delegated to officers

recommend to Council that the proposed Rules (whether as they are set out at
Appendix B or as amended by the Committee) be approved and that the
Monitoring Officer be authorised to update the Constitution and make all
necessary consequential changes

REPORT DETAIL

Background

All local authorities are required by law to incorporate into their constitutions, as
standing orders, rules relating to the employment of officers. These rules
include the appointment, the taking of disciplinary action against, and the
dismissal of officers, and are currently found in the Local Authorities (Standing
Orders) Regulations 1993 as amended and the Local Authorities (Standing
Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 as amended (“the Regulations”). While the
Regulations impose certain mandatory rules on local authorities, there is
freedom and flexibility for local authorities to otherwise adopt their own
procedures.

In summary, the Regulations set out the following requirements:

1.2.1 the appointment of the Chief Executive (as the Head of Paid Service) is
a decision that must be approved by Full Council

1.2.2 the appointment of other Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers may
be decisions for members (sitting as a committee) or officers

1.2.3 disciplinary action against and dismissal of Chief Officers and Deputy
Chief Officers may be decisions for members (sitting as a committee) or
officers

Page 22



Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

1.3

1.4

15

2.1

1.2.4 specific rules apply to the taking of disciplinary action against and the
dismissal of the Head of Paid Service, the Chief Financial Officer (ie.
s151 officer) and the Monitoring Officer

1.2.5 specific rules apply to the appointment of political assistants

1.2.6 proposals to appoint, take disciplinary action against, or dismiss Chief
Officers or Deputy Chief Officers are subject to a process whereby
Cabinet Members may object; if an objection is received, the decision-
maker must consider the objection and can only proceed if the objection
Is not material or well-founded

1.2.7 all decisions relating to the employment of officers below the level of
Deputy Chief Officer are the responsibility of the Chief Executive as the
Head of Paid Service

Chief Officers include statutory officers and those reporting directly to the Chief
Executive. Deputy Chief Officers are those reporting into Chief Officers.
Administrative staff are excluded from these definitions.

At its meeting on 8 January 2020, the Committee deferred consideration of the
proposals set out in this report and requested that the changes between the
current and proposed Rules be spelt out with reasons provided for any
substantive change.

The Rules have been recast, which is to say the current and proposed versions
are two different documents. For this reason, it is not possible to use the “track
changes” functionality in Word to highlight the differences. However, the
changes are explained in detail at 2.9 below.

Key Considerations and Proposals

The current Rules are attached at Appendix A. The proposed Rules are
attached at Appendix B. The Rules have been rewritten to improve the
wording and formatting of the text, to remove obsolete job titles, and to provide
greater clarity. If these new Rules are approved, they will have the following
effects:

2.1.1 Members will continue to be responsible for appointing all Chief Officers.
In practice, this is the following roles in the senior management
structure:

e Chief Executive
¢ Chief Operating Officer (Chief Financial Officer, ie. s151 officer)

e Deputy Director of Legal and Governance Services (Monitoring
Officer; appointment is made via the oneSource Joint Committee)

e Director of Adult Services
e Director of Children’s Services
e Director of Regeneration Programmes

Page 23



Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

2.2

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

2.1.5

2.1.6

e Director of Housing Services
e Director of Neighbourhoods
e Director of Public Health

e Executive Director of oneSource (appointment is made via the
oneSource Joint Committee)

Members will be responsible for appointing whichever Deputy Chief
Officer roles it is decided by the Committee should be subject to
member appointment. This provision is addressed further at 2.3 — 2.5
below.

The Chief Executive (or his/her nominee) will be responsible for interim,
temporary or fixed-term appointments to Chief Officer and Deputy Chief
Officer roles, subject to the requirements and limits specified in
paragraphs 2.17 — 2.20 of the proposed Rules. This is a new provision
as the current Rules do not incorporate the delegated authority to make
such appointments that was agreed by the Committee on 30 August
2017. In addition, the proposed Rules: explicitly confer this authority
upon the relevant Chief Officer in the case of temporary appointments to
Deputy Chief Officer roles; require the Chief Executive, upon making a
temporary appointment, to notify the Appointments Sub-Committee in
writing of the timescales for making a permanent appointment; and, in
cases where it is proposed to extend a temporary appointment beyond
one year, require approval of the extension from the Appointments Sub-
Committee.

Members will be responsible for taking disciplinary action against the
Chief Executive or a Chief Officer only. Currently, members are also
responsible for taking disciplinary action against and dismissal of Deputy
Chief Officers. This provision is addressed further at 2.6 — 2.8 below.

In accordance with the Council’'s HR policies and employment law, any
Chief Officer or Deputy Chief Officer assessed as having “direct non-
competitive assimilation into a post” does not need to be appointed by
members (see para. 2.10 of the proposed Rules at Appendix B). This
covers circumstances where an officer is at risk of redundancy, a new or
vacant post provides suitable alternative employment, and assimilation
into the role is uncontested.

The Chief Executive may make minor changes to the Rules to ensure
they remain accurate and up to date — for example, by updating job titles
or grades to reflect changes to the Council’s management structure as
and when they occur.

Under the proposed Rules, member decision-making in relation to employment
matters will continue to be the responsibility of the Appointments Sub-
Committee, other than in the case of the Executive Director of oneSource and
the oneSource Directors, where member decision-making will continue to be
via the oneSource Joint Committee.

Page 24



Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Appointments to Deputy Chief Officer posts

A Deputy Chief Officer is any non-administrative role reporting into a Chief
Officer. The Regulations allow appointments to these roles to be made by
either members (sitting as a committee) or officers.

Over time, as the Council has delayered its management structure, the number
of posts that are defined as a Deputy Chief Officer has grown. It is therefore
appropriate for members to consider whether they wish to continue appointing
to all of these roles or whether it would be preferable to delegate some of these
appointments to officers. The following four options are set out at Appendix C
for the Committee’s consideration:

e Option 1: members appoint to all Deputy Chief Officer positions

e Option 2: members appoint to all Deputy Chief Officer positions where the
postholder is employed on Chief Officer terms and conditions (ie. roles
graded G13 and above)

e Option 3: members appoint to all Deputy Chief Officer positions graded G14
and above

e Option 4: members appoint to all Deputy Chief Officer positions graded G15
and above

The proposed Rules will be updated to reflect the decision of the Committee
prior to the Rules being put to Council for consideration.

Taking disciplinary action against and dismissing Deputy Chief Officers

The Regulations allow the taking of disciplinary action against and the dismissal
of Deputy Chief Officers to be decisions for members (sitting as a committee) or
officers.

The proposed Rules have been drafted to delegate responsibility for these
functions to the Chief Executive as the Head of Paid Service. This drafting
reflects the following factors: as the Council has delayered, the number of posts
defined as a Deputy Chief Officer has grown; greater delegation of the
disciplinary and dismissal process should result in faster, more efficient
decision-making; and these responsibilities sit well with the Head of Paid
Service given the postholder’s responsibility for the management and co-
ordination of the Council’s employees. However, ultimately it is for members to
decide if this is an appropriate and desirable delegation. Alternative options the
Committee may wish to consider include:

e maintaining members’ existing responsibility for taking disciplinary action
against and dismissing all Deputy Chief Officers

e aligning the responsibility for disciplinary action and dismissal with the
responsibility for appointment — ie. where members make the appointment

to a Deputy Chief Officer role, they also have responsibility for disciplinary
action and dismissal

Page 25



Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

2.8 Subject to the Committee’s decision, the proposed Rules will be updated as
required before they are put to Council for consideration.

Detailed comparison of the current and proposed Rules

2.9 The following table compares the current Rules at Appendix A with the
proposed Rules at Appendix B.

Current Rules Comments (para. numbers are to
the draft Rules — see Appendix 2)

Para. 1 (Seeking support for Replaced by para. 2.3& 2.4

appointment)

Para. 2 (Declarations) Replaced and amended by para. 2.1
and 2.2

Para. 3 (Recruitment) Replaced by para. 2.5

Para. 4 (Appointment of Head of Paid |Replaced by para. 2.6

Service)

Para. 5 (Appointment of Deputy Chief |Replaced by para. 2.9 (subject to the

Executives, Chief Finance Officer, Committee’s consideration of the list

Monitoring Officer, Assistant/Deputy  |of Deputy Chief Officers), 2.11, 2.12,

Directors and Heads of Service 2.15 and Appendix 1

Para. 6 (Appointment of Director of Replaced by para. 2.13
Public Health)

Para. 7 (Appointment of oneSource Replaced by para. by 1.2.1
Directors)

Para. 8 (Assistants to political groups) |Replaced by para. 2.16

Para. 9 (Disciplinary action) Replaced by para. 3.5

Para. 10 (Suspension) Replaced and amended by para. 3.4.
The decision to suspend rests with the
Committee only

Para. 11 (Independent person) Replaced by para. 3.5

Para. 12 (Dismissal) Replaced by para. 3.3

Para. 13 (Role of the Cabinet) Replaced by para. 4 — see definition of
“Committee”

Para. 14 (Appointment process) Replaced by para. 2.12 and Appendix
1

Para. 15 (Dismissal process) Replaced by para. 3.7 and Appendix 1

Para. 16 (Dismissal of Head of Paid |Replaced by para. 3.5
Service, Chief Finance Officer and
Monitoring Officer)

Para. 17 (Independent Persons) Replaced by para. 3.5 (as necessary)

Page 26



Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

Current Rules Comments (para. numbers are to
the draft Rules — see Appendix 2)

Para. 18 (Appointment of Panel) Replaced by para. 3.6

Para. 19 (Determination of Proposal to |Replaced by para. 3.5

Dismiss)

Para. 20 (Remuneration of Deleted — this is stated in the 2001
Independent Persons) Regulations (see para. 1.1.3)
Para. 21 (Capability process) Deleted — unnecessary and/or

Para. 22 (Grievance process) covered by para. 1.2.2

Para. 23 (Bullying and Harassment
process)

IMPLICATIONS & RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

N/A

Legal implications and risks:

These are incorporated into the body of the report.

Human Resources implications and risks:

These are incorporated into the body of the report.

Equalities implications and risks:

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a duty when exercising
its functions to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment
and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under the Act and advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between persons who a protected
characteristic and persons who do not. This is the public sector equality duty. The
protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation.

“Due regard” is the regard that is appropriate in the circumstances. The weight to be

attached to each need is a matter for the Council. As long as the Council is properly
aware of the effects and has taken them into account, the duty is discharged.

Page 27



Governance Committee, 13 January 2021

There are no direct equality implications arising from the proposed changes to the
Rules, but the Council’s policies, procedures and practices are designed to achieve
equality of treatment and a level playing field.

Background Papers

None

Page 28



Appendix A — Current Rules

STAFF EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES

Recruitment and appointment

1.

Seeking support for appointment

The Council will disqualify any applicant who directly or indirectly seeks the
support of any councillor for any appointment with the Council. This statement
shall be included in any recruitment information.

No councillor will seek support for any person for any appointment with the
Council.

Declarations

The Council shall ask any candidate for appointment as a member of staff to
state in writing whether they are related to an existing councillor or member of
council staff; or the partner of such persons. No candidate who declares such
a relationship will be appointed without the authority of Director of Human
Resources and/ or a Deputy Chief Executive.

Recruitment

Where the Council proposes to appoint a Head of Paid Service, a Deputy
Chief Executive, a one Source Director or a Head of Service and it is not
proposed that the appointment be made exclusively from among the existing
members of staff, the Council’s usual recruitment procedures shall apply.

Appointment of Head of Paid Service

The full Council will approve the appointment of the Head of Paid Service
following the recommendation of such an appointment by the Appointments
Committee. The Appointments Committee must include at least one Cabinet
member.

Appointment of Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Finance Officer,
Monitoring Officer, Assistant/ Deputy Directors and Heads of Service

The Appointments Committee will appoint Deputy Chief Executives, Chief
Finance Officer, Monitoring Officer, Assistant/ Deputy Directors and Heads of
Service. The committee must include at least one Cabinet member.

An offer of employment as a Deputy Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer,
Monitoring Officer, Assistant/ Deputy Directors or a Head of Service shall be
made only where no well-founded objection from any member of the Cabinet
has been received (as set out in rule 14 below).

Page 29



10.

11.

Appointment of Director of Public Health

The Council must in accordance with Part 3 of the National Health Service Act
2006 as amended by Section 30 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012,
jointly with the Secretary of State, appoint an individual to have responsibility
for all local authorities public health functions, including any conferred by
regulation. The individual is to be known as an officer of the local authority
and is to be known as the Director of Public Health. The appointment of the
Director of Public Health shall be made by the Advisory Appointments
Committee.

Appointment of oneSource Directors

The Managing Director, Directors, Assistant/Deputy Directors and Heads of
Service of oneSource shall be appointed pursuant to the provisions of the
Inter-Authority Agreement between the London Boroughs of Havering and
Newham dated 1 September 2014 and the variation thereto dated 18 June
2015

Assistants to political groups

Appointment of an assistant to a political group shall be made in accordance
with the wishes of that political group, and in accordance with statutory
regulations.

Disciplinary action

No disciplinary action in respect of the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring
Officer or the Chief Finance Officer, except action described in paragraph 10
below, may be taken other than in accordance with a recommendation in a
report made by a Panel of Appointments Sub-Committee under regulation 6 of
the Local Authorities (standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations
2015.

Suspension

The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer may
be suspended by the Council whilst an investigation takes place into alleged
misconduct. That suspension will be on full pay and should last no longer than
two months. In exceptional circumstances, the decision to suspend may be
made by a Deputy Chief Executive in conjunction with the Director of Human
Resources and Organisational Change; this decision must be notified to all
councillors as soon as possible.

Independent person
No other disciplinary action may be taken in respect of any of the officers

referred to in 9 above except in accordance with a recommendation in a
report made by a Panel of the Appointments Sub-Committee

Page 30



12.

13.

14.

15.

Councillors will not be involved in the disciplinary action against any officer
below Head of Service level except where:

(&) such involvement is necessary for any investigation or inquiry into
alleged misconduct

(b) the Council’s disciplinary, capability and related procedures, as
adopted from time to time may allow a right of appeal to members in
respect of disciplinary action.

Dismissal

Councillors will not be involved in the dismissal of any officer below Head of
Service level except where:

(&) such involvement is necessary for any investigation or inquiry into
alleged misconduct

(b) the Council’s disciplinary, capability and related procedures as adopted
from time to time may allow a right of appeal to members in respect of
dismissals.

Role of the Cabinet

Where a committee or a sub-committee of the Council is discharging, on
behalf of the authority, the function of the appointment or dismissal of the
Head of Paid Service, a Deputy Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer,
Monitoring Officer or a Head of Service at least one member of the Cabinet
must be a member of that committee or sub-committee.

Appointment process

In this paragraph, “appointor” means, in relation to the appointment of a
person as a member of staff of the Council, the Council or, where a
committee, sub-committee or member of staff is discharging the function of
appointment on behalf of the Council, that committee, sub-committee or
member of staff, as the case may be.

An offer of an appointment as Head of Paid Service, Deputy Chief Executive,
Chief Finance Officer, Monitoring Officer, Assistant/Deputy Director or Head
of Service must not be made by the appointor until the appropriate notification
has been advised to Cabinet, in accordance with regulations and objections
have been received and considered. Such appointments must be in
accordance with the appropriate terms and conditions of employment

Dismissal process

In this paragraph, “dismissor” means, in relation to the dismissal of an
member of staff of the Council, the Council or, where a committee, sub-
committee or another member of staff is discharging the function of dismissal

Page 31



16.

17.

18

on behalf of the Council, that committee, sub-committee or other member of
staff, as the case may be.

Notice of the dismissal of a Deputy Chief Executive, or Head of Service must
not be given by the dismissor until the appropriate notification has been
advised to Cabinet, in accordance with regulations and objections have been
received and considered.

Dismissal of Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring
Officer

The Head of Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer
may not be dismissed by the Council unless the procedure set out in the
following paragraphs is complied with.

Independent Persons

The Council must invite relevant independent persons to be considered for
appointment to a Panel, being a committee appointed by the Council under
Section 102(a) of the Local Government Act 1972 for the purposes of advising
the Council on matters relating to the dismissal of any of the officers referred to
in Paragraph 16 above with a view to appointing at least two such persons to the
Committee.

A ‘relevant independent person’ means any independent person appointed by
the Council under Section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011 or where there are
fewer than two such persons, such independent persons as have been
appointed by another authority or authorities as the Council considers
appropriate.

The Council is not required to appoint more than two relevant independent
persons to its Panel but may do so if it wishes.

The Council must appoint to its Panel such relevant independent persons who
have accepted an invitation issued in accordance with paragraphs above with
the following priority order:

(&) A relevant independent person who has been appointed by the Authority
and who is a local government elector;

(b) Any other relevant independent person who has been appointed by the
Authority

(c) A relevant independent person who has been appointed by another
Authority or Authorities.

Appointment of Panel

The Council must appoint any Panel at least 20 working days before a meeting
of the Council to consider whether or not to approve a proposal to dismiss any of
the officers referred to in Paragraph 16 above.

Page 32



19

20

21.

22

23

Determination of Proposal to Dismiss

Before the taking of a vote on whether or not to approve a dismissal, the Council
must take into account in particular:

(a) Any advice, views or recommendations of the Panel

(b) The conclusions of any investigation into the proposed dismissal, and

(c) Any representations from the officer the subject of the disciplinary action
Remuneration of Independent Persons

Any remuneration or fees paid by the Council to an independent person
appointed to the Panel must not exceed the level of remuneration, allowances of
fees payable to that independent person in respect of that person’s role as
independent person under the Localism Act 2011

Capability process

The process to be followed must be in accordance with the appropriate
terms and conditions of employment for that member of staff and the
appropriate Council employment policy/procedure

Grievance process

The process to be followed for a grievance must be in accordance with the
appropriate terms and conditions of employment for that member of staff
appropriate Council employment policy/procedure

Bullying and Harassment process
The process to be followed for a complaint must be in accordance with the

appropriate terms and conditions of employment for that member of staff
appropriate Council employment policy/procedure

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



11

1.2

1.3

2

Appendix B — Draft Proposed Rules

STAFF EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES
PURPOSE
These rules:

1.1.1  set out the general principles and requirements in relation to the appointment
and dismissal of, and taking disciplinary action against, officers;

1.1.2  define the role of the Leader, Members, officers and others in the employment
of Council officers; and

1.1.3 incorporate the mandatory standing orders relating to the employment of
officers that apply to all local authorities and set out in the Local Authorities
(Standing Orders) Regulations 1993 (as amended) and the Local Authorities
(Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as amended).

These rules are supplemented by, or should be read in conjunction with:

1.2.1 the oneSource Inter-Authority Agreement between the London Boroughs of
Havering and Newham dated 1 September 2014 as varied from time to time;

and

1.2.2  Operational Guidance and/or HR Palicies and Procedures issued by the Chief
Executive and/or the Director of Human Resources and Organisational

Development from time to time.

Any changes to these rules will be approved by Full Council but the Chief Executive is
authorised to make minor changes to ensure that the rules remain accurate, relevant
and up to date. For example, the Chief Executive may update job titles or grades to

reflect the management structure of the Council current at the time.

RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT

Declarations

2.1

The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate for appointment as an
officer to state in writing whether they are the parent, grandparent, partner, child,
stepchild, adopted child, grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece of an

existing councillor or officer of the Council; or of the partner of such persons.

Page 35



2.2 No candidate so related to a councillor or an officer will be appointed without the

authority of the relevant Chief Officer or an officer nominated by him/her.
Seeking support for appointment
2.3 The Council will disqualify any applicant who directly or indirectly seeks the support of

any Member for any appointment with the Council. The content of this paragraph will

be included in any recruitment information.
2.4 No Member will seek support for any person for any appointment with the Council.
Recruitment of Chief Executive and Chief Officers

2.5 Where the Council proposes to appoint the Chief Executive or a Chief Officer and it is
not proposed that the appointment be made exclusively from existing officers, the

Council will:

2.5.1 draw up a statement specifying the duties of the officer concerned and any
qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to be appointed;

2.5.2 make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way as is likely to
bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified to apply for it;

2.5.3 make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in sub-paragraph
(i) to be sent to any person on request; and

2.5.4 make arrangements for at least a short list of qualifying applicants to be

interviewed.
Appointment of Chief Executive

2.6  Full Council will approve the appointment of the Chief Executive (as the Head of Paid

Service) following the recommendation of such an appointment by the Committee.

2.7 The Director of Human Resources and Organisational Development will be
responsible for the functions set out at 2.5 for the appointment of the Chief Executive

following consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member(s).
Appointment of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers

2.8 The Chief Executive will be responsible for the functions set out at paragraph 2.5

following consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member(s).

2.9 Subject to paragraph 2.10, the Committee will be responsible for the appointment of

the following posts:

2.9.1 Chief Officers; and

Page 36



2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.9.2  Deputy Chief Officers [subject to Governance Committee consideration of the
list of Deputy Chief Officers]

Paragraph 2.9 does not apply to posts where, in the event of a restructure, an officer is

assessed as having direct non-competitive assimilation to a post.

The Chief Executive will be responsible for the appointment of all other Deputy Chief
Officer posts (or other posts subject to the 2001 Regulations) [ subject to Governance
Committee consideration of the list of Deputy Chief Officers].

An offer of employment as a Chief Officer or a Deputy Chief Officer will only be made
if:
2.12.1 the procedure set out in Appendix 1 is followed; and

2.12.2 no well-founded objection has been made by the Leader or any Cabinet

Member.

An offer of employment as the Director of Public Health will be made in accordance
with the additional statutory requirements that apply to this post. In particular, the
appointment will be made jointly with the Secretary of State for Health and Social
Care.

Other Appointments
The Chief Executive is responsible for the appointment of all other Council employees.

Prior to making an appointment of a Deputy Chief Officer post, the Chief Executive will
follow the procedure set out in Appendix 1 [this clause will only apply if Governance
Committee decide that the appointment to any Deputy Chief Officer posts should be

delegated to officers].

The appointment of an assistant to a political group will be made in accordance with

the wishes of that political group and other requirements prescribed by law.
Interim, temporary or fixed term appointments

Decisions to appoint a Chief Officer or a Deputy Chief Officer [where a permanent
appointment would be made by members] on an interim, temporary or fixed term
contract will be made by the Chief Executive but limited to one year (including any
contract extensions). Following such appointment, the Chief Executive will notify the

Committee in writing setting out the timescales for a permanent appointment.

Prior to extending the appointment of a Chief Officer or a Deputy Chief Officer [where
a permanent appointment would be made by members] on an interim, temporary or

fixed term contract beyond one year, the approval of the Committee shall be obtained.

Page 37



2.19 The appointment of a Chief Executive on an interim, temporary or fixed term basis will

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

be recommended by the Committee for approval by Full Council.

DISCIPLINARY ACTION
General

Subject to paragraph 3.5, any proposal in relation to the dismissal or the taking of
disciplinary action against the Chief Executive or a Chief Officer will be considered by

the Committee.

Any proposal in relation to the dismissal or the taking of disciplinary action against
other officers will be the responsibility of the Chief Executive or the relevant officer

under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation.

Members will not be involved in the taking of disciplinary action against or the
dismissal of any officer below Deputy Chief Officer except where such involvement is
necessary as part of an investigation, inquiry or appeal.

Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer

The Committee may suspend the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer or the Chief
Finance Officer whilst an investigation takes place into alleged misconduct. That

suspension will be on full pay and will be reviewed if it lasts longer than two months.

A proposal to dismiss the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer or Chief Finance Officer,
as a result of ‘disciplinary action’ (as defined by regulation 2 of the Local Authorities
(Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001) will be approved at a meeting of Full
Council before notice of dismissal is given. Before the taking of a vote at any such
meeting, Full Council will take into account, in particular:

(@ any advice, views or recommendations of an Independent Panel, comprising
of at least two Independent Persons, appointed by Full Council for the
purposes of advising the Council;

(ii) the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed dismissal; and

(iii) any representations from the officer concerned.

The Independent Panel referred to in paragraph 3.5(i) will be appointed at least 20

working days before the relevant Full Council meeting.

Page 38



Chief Executive, Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers

3.7 Before notice is given of the dismissal of the Chief Executive, a Chief Officer or a
Deputy Chief Officer, the notification and objection procedure set out in Appendix 1
will be followed as if references to the appointment of an officer (e.g. ‘make an offer’,
‘appointment’, ‘appointing officer’ etc.) are to the dismissal of an officer (e.g. ‘dismiss’,

‘dismissal’, ‘notice of dismissal’ etc.) as appropriate.

Director of Public Health

3.8 The Secretary of State for Health and Social Care will be consulted before terminating
the appointment of the Director of Public Health.

4 DEFINITIONS

Chief Executive = the Head of Paid Service designated under section 4(1) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989. Where reference is made to the exercise of a function

by the Chief Executive, it includes his/her nominee.

Chief Finance Officer = the officer having responsibility for the purposes of section 151 of
the Local Government Act 1972.

Chief Officer = an officer for which the Chief Executive is directly responsible or an officer

who reports directly to or is directly accountable to the Chief Executive (but not if their duties
are solely secretarial or clerical or are otherwise in the nature of support services); an officer
who reports directly or is directly accountable to the Council (or a Council committee or sub-

committee); the Monitoring Officer or the Director of Public Health.

Committee = the Appointments Sub-Committee or such other Council committee, sub-
committee or panel responsible for exercising the Council’s employment functions. The

Committee must include at least one Cabinet Member.

Deputy Chief Officer as defined by section 2 of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989.

Independent Persons any appointment under section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011.

Monitoring Officer the officer designated under section 5(1) of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989.

Political assistant(s) any appointment under section 9 of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989.

Page 39



Appendix 1: Cabinet Objection Procedure

1

11

1.2

1.3

14

4.1

4.2

4.3

7.1

7.2

This procedure will apply to the appointment of the following posts:
Chief Executive;

Chief Officers;

Deputy Chief Officers;

Any other post identified by the 2001 Regulations.

If the Committee or an officer agrees on a candidate suitable for appointment to a post,
they will submit their recommendation of an offer of employment to the Chief Executive as

soon as practicable in writing.

Where the Chief Executive is the appointing officer, they will simply take the steps at 4
onwards.

The Chief Executive will then notify each Cabinet Member of:

the name of the person the Committee or officer wish to make an offer;

any other particulars relevant to the appointment;

the period within which any objection to the making of the offer is to be made by the Leader
on behalf of the Cabinet, (or a shorter period which will be determined by the Chief

Executive in cases of urgency).

The notification will be by e-mail and the period of objection will be 2 working days but
a Cabinet Member may provide a response within a shorter period. If the period of objection

is to be shortened, then notification will be by telephone and e-mail.

Cabinet Members may indicate they have no objection verbally (which will be recorded by
the Chief Executive) or in writing (including email). Any objections including the grounds
on which it is considered to be well founded must be submitted to the Leader by a Cabinet

Member in writing including by email.
If:

the Leader notifies the Chief Executive that neither s/he or any other Cabinet Member has

an objection to the making of the offer; or

the Chief Executive notifies the Committee, that no objection has been received from the

Leader within the objection period;

Page 40



an offer of employment may be made to the candidate without the need for the Committee

to re-convene.

If an objection is received from the Leader, the Committee or officer, as appropriate, will re-
convene to consider the objection and, if satisfied that any objection received from the
Leader is not material or is not well founded, will confirm its decision and a formal offer will

be made. In making this decision, legal and human resources advice must be taken.

If an objection is considered to be well founded, the Committee, Sub Committee or officer
must take legal and human resources advice on the action to be taken but the appointment
may not be made at this time.

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C =Deputy Chief Officers

Option 1: Members appoint to all Deputy Chief Officer positions

If this option is agreed, members (sitting as a committee) will appoint to the following Deputy
Chief Officer positions:

Directorate \ Deputy Chief Officers Grade
Adult Services Adult Safeguarding Service Manager Gl1
Head of Business Management G12
Head of Integrated Service G12
Chief Operating | Assistant Director of Customer, Communications & Culture | G14
Officer Assistant Director of Policy, Performance and Community G14
Assistant Director of Transformation G114
Head of Joint Commissioning Unit G12
Head of Programme Office G12
Children’s Assistant Director of Children’s Services G15
Services Assistant Director of Education Services G15
Principal Social Worker and Head of Social Care Practice G13
Head of Clinical Practice G12
Housing Assistant Director of Housing Demand G13
Services Assistant Director of Housing Services G13
Assistant Director of Property Services G13
Assistant Director of Supported Housing G13
Head of Housing Strategy and Development G12
Housing Systems Manager G10
Neighbourhoods | Assistant Director of Civil Protection G14
Assistant Director, Highways and Environment Gl4
Assistant Director of Planning G14
Head of Registration and Bereavement Service G13
oneSource* Director of Asset Management G15
Director of Exchequer and Transactional Services G15
Director of Finance G15
Director of HR and Organisational Development G15
Director of Legal and Governance Services G15
Director of Procurement G14
Director of Technology and Innovation G15
Assistant Director, Performance, Policy and Programmes G13
Public Health Public Health Consultant x 4 G12
Regeneration Head of Development G13
Programmes Head of Inclusive Growth G13
Head of Programmes and Support G111

* Member decision-making for oneSource roles takes place via the oneSource Joint Committee.

Page 43



Option 2: Members appoint to all Deputy Chief Officer positions where the postholder
is employed on Chief Officer terms and conditions

In line with the Council’s 2017 review of terms and conditions, all Deputy Chief Officers
graded G13 and above are employed on Chief Officer terms and conditions. This may
therefore represent an appropriate threshold for determining that members (sitting as a
committee) should be responsible for appointing to the post. The appointment of Deputy
Chief Officers graded G12 and below would be delegated to the Head of Paid Service.

If this option is agreed, members (sitting as a committee) will appoint to the following Deputy
Chief Officer positions:

Directorate \ Deputy Chief Officers Grade
Chief Operating | Assistant Director of Customer, Communications & Culture | G14
Officer Assistant Director of Policy, Performance and Community G14
Assistant Director of Transformation Gl4
Children’s Assistant Director of Children’s Services G15
Services Assistant Director of Education Services G15
Principal Social Worker and Head of Social Care Practice G13
Housing Assistant Director of Housing Demand G13
Services Assistant Director of Housing Services G13
Assistant Director of Property Services G13
Assistant Director of Supported Housing G13
Neighbourhoods | Assistant Director of Civil Protection Gl4
Assistant Director, Highways and Environment Gl14
Assistant Director of Planning G114
Head of Registration and Bereavement Service G13
oneSource* Director of Asset Management G15
Director of Exchequer and Transactional Services G15
Director of Finance G15
Director of HR and Organisational Development G15
Director of Legal and Governance Services G15
Director of Procurement Gl4
Director of Technology and Innovation G15
Assistant Director, Performance, Policy and Programmes G13
Regeneration Head of Development G13
Programmes Head of Inclusive Growth G13

* Member decision-making for oneSource roles takes place via the oneSource Joint Committee.

Page 44



Option 3: Members appoint to all Deputy Chief Officer positions where the postholder
is graded G14 and above

If this option is agreed, members (sitting as a committee) will appoint to the following Deputy
Chief Officer positions:

Directorate \ Deputy Chief Officers Grade
Chief Operating | Assistant Director of Customer, Communications & Culture | G14
Officer Assistant Director of Policy, Performance and Community G14
Assistant Director of Transformation G14
Children’s Assistant Director of Children’s Services G15
Services Assistant Director of Education Services G15
Neighbourhoods | Assistant Director of Civil Protection Gl14
Assistant Director, Highways and Environment Gl4
Assistant Director of Planning Gl14
oneSource* Director of Asset Management G15
Director of Exchequer and Transactional Services G15
Director of Finance G15
Director of HR and Organisational Development G15
Director of Legal and Governance Services G15
Director of Procurement Gl4
Director of Technology and Innovation G15

* Member decision-making for oneSource roles takes place via the oneSource Joint Committee.
Option 4. Members appoint to all Deputy Chief Officer positions where the postholder
is graded G15 and above

If this option is agreed, members (sitting as a committee) will appoint to the following Deputy
Chief Officer positions:

Directorate \ Deputy Chief Officers Grade
Children’s Assistant Director of Children’s Services G15
Services Assistant Director of Education Services G15
oneSource* Director of Asset Management G15
Director of Exchequer and Transactional Services G15
Director of Finance G15
Director of HR and Organisational Development G15
Director of Legal and Governance Services G15
Director of Technology and Innovation G15

* Member decision-making for oneSource roles takes place via the oneSource Joint Committee.

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

»¢ Havering

g L ONDON BOROUGH

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 13 January 2021

Subject Heading: Temporary Changes to Polling Stations
due to COVID19
GLA Elections 6" May 2021

SLT Lead: Andrew Blake-Herbert
Chief Executive
Report Author and contact details: Zena Smith 01708 431 585
zena.smith@havering.gov.uk
Policy context: There are no direct resource implications
Financial summary: The Greater London Assembly Elections

are funded by the Greater London
Authority — therefore there are no financial
implications.

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

Communities making Havering [x]
Places making Havering [
Opportunities making Havering 0
Connections making Havering 0

Page 47



Brooklands, EIm Park, Gooshays,
Hacton, Harold Wood, Heaton,
Mawneys, Pettits, Romford Town,
Rainham and Wennington, Squirrels
Heath, St Andrews, South Hornchurch,
Upminster

Affected Wards

SUMMARY

This report provides information regarding temporary changes to 21 polling stations.
These temporary arrangements are either:

e due to venues no longer being available in light of the Covid19 pandemic or

e to avoid further disruption to schools, where alternative venues are able to be
secured

RECOMMENDATIONS

To note the proposed changes set out in the report concerning the location of
polling stations used for the GLA elections on 6" May 2021.

To note a number of the proposed new venues are yet to confirm, in the event that
any of these decline that the original venue be used.

To note that the final list will be sent to all members prior to the election being held
on 6" May 2021.

REPORT DETAIL

The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 requires the Council to carry
out a review of the Borough’s polling districts and polling places every four years. The
last compulsory review was completed August 2019. However this report is only
concerned with the need to review the location of polling stations where schools are
currently used to avoid further disruption to education where possible.

There are currently 40 school premises used as polling stations out of 93 venues. A
review was undertaken of schools to investigate alternative venues within each polling
district. Of the 40 venues 20 alternative venues were identified. The following
alternatives have been secured:

Page 48



Members are asked to note the temporary proposed changes to polling stations for the
forthcoming elections to be held on 6 May 2021.

Appendix & Ward

Current Polling Station

Proposed Polling Station

Appendix 1 Mawney Foundation

Brooklands Ward School Yew Tree Day Centre
Appendix 2 . ,

Elm Park Ward Scargill Infants School Bretons Community Hall
Appendix 3 R J Mitchell Primary HASWA Community
Elm Park Ward School Association

Appendix 4 Harold Court Primary Havering Dog Training
Harold Wood Ward School Centre

Appendix 5 . Romford Evangelical Free
Romford Town Ward Hylands Primary School Church

Appendix 6 . , . .

Rainham & Wennington Ward Rainham Village School | Rainham Library
Appendix 7 . ) ]

Squirrels Ward Squirrels Heath School Gidea Park Library
Appendix 8 , .

St Andrews Ward Langtons Junior School Hornchurch Library
Appendix 9 . .

St Andrews Ward Benhurst Primary School | EIm Park Library
Appendix 10 La Salette Catholic

South Hornchurch Ward Primary School La Salette Hall
Appendix 11 . . . .

Upminster Ward Upminster Junior School | Upminster Library
Appendix 12 Brookdale Avenue Scout

Upminster Ward

Branfil School

Hall

At the time of writing this report the following venues are yet to confirm. A verbal
update will be given at the meeting.

Appendix & Ward

Current Polling Station

Proposed Polling Station

B
ﬁgg;aonndix 14 Hacton Primary School Egl\llgvr\;;]ﬁmc):lr—]&sllt lan
é%?)i?}gi;/(slvflar d ggﬁ%ﬂs Pyrgo Priory Drapers Children’s Centre
Q[;F\;\?nns;s( \1/\(/3ar d gtiﬁz’:rr;cgr% aglh()l'c St Patricks Catholic Club
éggﬁg(\j/i\;(aﬂ Parklands Junior School | Royal British Legion
Appendix 18 St Marys and St Peters

Rainham & Wennington Ward

Brady School

Church

Page 49




In addition there are three venues that are no longer available for the May 2021
elections, alternatives have been identified as follows:

Appendix & Ward

Current Polling Station

Proposed Polling Station

Appendix 19 St Johns Church Portacabin - St Johns
Brooklands Ward Community Hall Community Hall Car Park
Appendix 20 Heaton Way United .

Heaton Ward Reform Church St Dominic’s Church Hall
Appendix 21

Harold Wood Ward St Peters Church The Ingrebourne Centre

Consideration was given to the following venues as initial risk assessments indicated
these as high risk. Upon further investigation both The Herons and The Pepperell Centre
have agreed use and have confirmed relevant covid safety procedures are in place.

Appendix & Ward

Current Polling Station

Proposed Polling Station

Appendix 22

St Andrews Ward Hopwa House Europa Centre
St Andrews Ward The Herons No Change
Havering Park The Pepperell Centre No Change

Publicising the temporary change

In February 2021, all residential households will be sent a Household Notification
Letter confirming details of electors at the property, in addition, notification of changes
to polling stations can also be incorporated into this notification.

In March, poll cards will be issued to eligible electors and will highlight any temporary

changes to polling stations.

Prior to polling day, notices and directions will be placed where polling would usually
have taken place, advising the relocation of the temporary change to the polling

station.

In addition, a Communication Strategy will be in place, advertising the temporary
changes via the website, social media, and havering publications.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

There are no financial implications; these elections will be funded by the Greater

London Authority.

Page 50




Legal implications and risks:

These changes are referred to in the body of the report.

These changes can be made outside of a formal review as explained in the relevant
Guidance issued by The Electoral Commission on ‘Reviews of polling districts, polling
places and polling stations and confirms that unlike polling districts and polling places,
that are fixed by the council, polling stations are chose by the Returning Officer for the
relevant election.

It is recognised that following the Local Government Boundary Commission review of
Havering that a further polling station and District review will need to take place in the
summer of 2021 before the next register is published on 15t December 2021.

Human Resources implications and risks:

None

Equalities implications and risks:

Electoral services have and will follow Electoral Commission Guidance on polling
stations using a suitability access which takes into account the recommendations
of scope.

A risk assessment of all polling stations will take place and Electoral Commission
guidance will be issued regarding Covid Safe stations.

Polling staff will receive equalities training as part of the Staff training undertaken to
work on the election.

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



George's
ng Fields

A‘ﬁ'ﬁ:—j

Existing=
Mawney Foundation School

Proposed =
Yew Tree Lodge

Cottons Park

i P e e

one
source

at the heart of public services

Technical Services

River Chambers | High Street
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

»* LONDON BOROUGH

rev/by date

+Havering

amendment

BL2 Polling Station Relocation
Mawney Foundation School to
Yew Tree Lodge

Proposed Relocation Plan

drawn by nt
date December 2020

Pageb3 NTS

drawing number

BL2

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



e [ e I'.l _W._‘-.le,-,_ _J
L G )7
\ | . aj
\ |I | o f
by \ NP \
||
Ll Gas N
Transmission
Station
Recreation Ground
;c;cmion?rm
| The Q}
Manor House School
| |
Bretons
| Hall . Car
Scrap ) Park I
Yo Proposed = ’
= Bretons 5/
fll. I:' /i
/ i -KELLH\C—REECE W J
| !
o PEON_ROAD é’
W S Recreation Ground / Car 3
Beam Vallay f & Park
Country Park ¢ Kr.--’
S, 4 e " . . =
,. Scargill In Existing
o / Scargill Infants
(N / 5 School 3 :
\M P~ ko / Brittons Infant \\ Falgg o
5 L Playing Fields chools W,
7 ’ / ; AR 0
_.u"‘l J/" C g i
'_/OW/F_I‘I_?WS /.-’ / Recreation Ground EIMER o
If 2 1 7 5
e i ;
ta =
; . i - 3 /[/7 \ A

4 \ - ] . EL1 Polling Station Relocation
4 s Park e / Ha\/e”nq Scargill Infants School fo Bretons

7 N 5 an
ASH 7 % £y 23 source Proposed Relocation Plan

zZp

pagenham

pam Bridge ;
. bV & = L] at the heart of public services
Tech n|CO| SerViceS rev/by  date amendment drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date December 2020 E L '|

Romford |[RMT THR |Tel: 01708 434343 scale NTS
Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource, The London
Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham Property Services. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



. =
Far
‘; 7
74 e Mason
o o g Waters
5 Cantre
fog
Albyns
Farm
8X1

3 . i 0 | B = =BT
;é%‘ o \'E"‘“H_ .II{’ Ilr/ | | J'J ll.llJ é,% /r‘ H--“‘:Eﬁ‘ 5=/ ﬁ--'“:‘}r/ k= {::7 Q
/{:‘f,’r 4“%-.__ % = e b |II { I,J j F ]ll ] ! = q‘-a:';" [ &5 fﬁ\mn
~-q‘f) ‘?{ié % i | | / / g [ &e i o 657 / ,-’f.;%'?f Sta
$) 57 f S I ey
faasry ,é‘i-" / -y . P S f
A 4 P | Jif L i, S T |
& // [/ Elm|Park i >, ; ~ /
_-\- "-u-".i.}:r J"’HI ‘r'f ‘-‘rl- A - E f ;- = L,} I,'"Ill
Iy i L iy & g/
TS G [ J i Scot 157 'l';j f
éjﬂ N“\ﬂ Primary School /3 T é‘:"/ J.I|ll !
.;j-,r Proposed = AT a s R e
J ot = HASWA, - & 7 n =
L Kilmartin Way ~ wnd S
far Pl
S~ . Car
N () S S |
LN TR |
i/ Vine Existing = 2 PE“:““S
b4 RJ Mitchell School éé; Sy
'éq?) & il

f )
[/ .
1) La
Hornehurch ( b
Country Park 1
EL2 ' |
Fannfield Sy
Waood -
Barwick W
Lowfleld Wood
ol Abbey
Wood

I WO T

one
at the heart of public services

Technical Services

River Chambers | High Street
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

rev/by

¢ Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

EL2 Polling Station Relocation
RJ Mitchell School to
HASWA, Kilmartin Way

Proposed Relocation Plan

date amendment
drawn by nt drawing number
date December 2020
—=
Page o7 NTS EL2

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



Lo

FETE

Harold Couw

\
‘Recn Gd !
Harold
.Dal;;_::f___:‘ - .I it
Proposed = N5

Painesbrook Dog ..
/&% Training Hall

o)

i,

Sta *"f

_ 2N
- L v < {;\3’[‘;;5_‘; |
AN
=W \

3
LAY

RS

Primary School

Existing =
Harold Court Primary School

N

r

v Havering

source S e
at the heart of public services

Technical Services

River Chambers | High Street
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

rev/by date amendment

Pa

HWS5 Polling Station Relocation
Harold Court Primary School to
Painesbrook Dog Training Club Hall

Proposed Relocation Plan

drawn by nt drawing number
date December 2020
| = HWS

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



Recn Gd

S E =

g T

Proposed =
L)\ Romford Evangelical

1\_“_ rvy
\ Heatk

G

o ‘ Church, Brentwood Road

I

The Y

5
Jsro%
5

o

FT
Frances Bardsley
Pa r School For Girls
Existing = - \
school
Hylands
Park
2
o
P
m
(=
=
m
=
w
o
'
(=)
(71 =
- 0 S
5 : 7 =
: 8 3 z
- = = ]
RT5 Polling Station Relocation
Qne 48 Ha\/e” nq Hylands Primary School to
source s LONDON 8OROUGH Romford Evangelical Church N
at the heart of public services Proposed ReIOCOﬁOﬂ Plon
Technlccﬂ SerViceS rev/by date amendment drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date December 2020
Romford |[RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

RTS

scale NTS

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in d retrievable system, or fransmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource, The London
Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham Property Services. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



Rainham Village School

e W, o r y TIANITNT TrNIvyy ! | T
o == " - 5,‘"@ A R Wy ]
— - ot / - — N g o f e I'. \ \ '.|
e B P, A - - AT
=7 =, R e - - i
i T — . = i
— e Wi I N '-,"
e ing Eat - 3
TR = L
e f & §
b o % .-
g =
55 o i Barnbuam i
& ; 4 _I*:'L“x 5 ot o
\gl;\ %@E Existing = 2
] & 2

e o= # T N 2 i b |
B : e, i \3 Mamze e Q \% \ "-,.--"'-
R NNy ey o ey, B " b\
. oy g I—-u-.:::—-—\.__ _ﬂ =% % '\&‘ I'"I"
W o oy e L} . 0 Vg
w7 == Proposed = \ \ rqﬁ o
f ¢ \ L [e—
; =l - e
"y firniy Jurin:
";,2 Echgal
't.L ; W Doyl Ml
Faarm
ok
S 0y, ikl
:.:teilg -.
& N,
oo
Fl‘.
b
Mim
iy

Falnham Marshas

Wannington)

CarFoet

Waorkings

. RW4 Polling Station Relocation A
‘ Haverl nq Rainham Village School to

ohe ;
source

LONDON BOROUGH RG|nhOm lercry N
at the heart of public services Proposed Re|OCOﬂOﬂ P|CI ﬂ
. . rev/by date amendment
TeC h N |CO| S@I’VICGS drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date | o December 2020
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 Pagse:IQJ NTS R W4

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327



This page is intentionally left blank



T
& amE—

o

!

¥ _3

Proposed =
Gidea Park Library

Recn Gd

Existing =
< Squirrels Heath Junior School

,/’\ |
el F o5 Ba
-~ = ﬂ&P ar k School Furri{j.*:slir:lag

Hylands
Park
ar %
nne ] SQ3 Polling Station Relocation A
Haverl nq Squirrels Heath Junior School to

source gmims LONDON BOROUGH G'deO Pcrk lerdry N

at the heart of public services feviby date amendment Proposed Re|OCCIﬂOﬂ P|Oﬂ
TeC h ﬂiCO| SerViCGS drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date | _ December 2020 SQ3
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 Pagﬁmeb:) 1:5000 @ A4

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



—

CADOMER ROAD

Recn G ERSON DRIVE

Pavilion

& wﬁ 1
CToR

R’

f

T330.5 HLIHON

|

Proposed =
Hornchurch Library
]

=
(=]

Ak

Existing =
Langtons Junior Academy

at the heart of public services

Technical Services

River Chambers | High Street
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

rev/by date

a¢ Havering

Jmis LONDON BOROUGH

CROSS GF
{ PR INGTON ARG
=
B
e ————
BVENLE T ERUCE AVE | Car MAVE I4]
1 = gi Park
=
2 1
/ THE 15.1%4 _I
G
d g
1 :
£TANLEY ] ROAD £
-F.._'_,.r'_ wWat=1 I'rh ‘
/" o
[\ &
=1
I._'i.‘r- =
— 3 —
P = =n——rn . =
|4 : i
3
= =
% 5 =
" o a

ST2 Polling Station Relocation
Langtons Junior School to
Hornchurch Library

St Andrew
Park

Hall

Mill
Cottlagu

___ Proposed Relocation Plan
drawn by nt drawing number
date | December 2020

ST2

Page 67

1:5000 @ A4

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a refrievable system, or fransmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327



This page is intentionally left blank



rimary

[Sehaol

[E_N\EAHE ©L

i

Recn Gd

Hornchurch
Sportcentre

~
\I'I?::-
<%
The Albany s
{Sacondary) By
§ e
Miniature Golf Course

|

Harrow Lodge Park

vE A

ENI0HYD Q404038

2 :
f) = = .'.!1 =
———
Boat o fal
House m :j
oo
_U ‘ﬁ CEDAR ROAD ‘ :
jab) A2~ Existing = =
((% (g}?@' Benhurst Primary School =
(|
@ N\ ' =
O e B \ M r T ’ ‘
5 — - Abbs Cross (_,/,f’ '/_‘z L .
(/" \ L 4 5 sc":-::f: } |
- ! Proposed = econdary| e B,
Pav T Fw S .‘" » Elm Park Library > i ] ,/{Eﬂ?—“-‘-l:ﬁ‘w,__m
\ P ™ f“’;:] S ‘
— . ’;f‘s’ B T —LEAT B 2
s L , Digan P / I
EL4 ¢ :
_—-’/
Elf = Elm Pag‘;h The & ‘Ean{l::lf‘ersll:lraper o
“'-H.H £ i Lels] .
ARE AVENUE —_ el [Secondarw Suﬂons
=) (I.SITJEI’J // “9_;"6’5@': ananf [ HEQ\ ‘-%.
= T ?n -
YAEW ﬂ I .mgﬁ—"’j: & ?\ ... \ B |

one
source
Technical Services

River Chambers | High Street
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

¢ Havering

ami LONDON BOROUGH

rev/by date

ST5 Polling Station Relocation
Benhurst Primary School to
EIm Park Library

Proposed Relocation Plan

drawn by nt
date December 2020
1:10000 @ A3

amendment drawing number

ST

scale

Copynignt, all fights reserved. No part of This document may be reproduced, stored in d refrievable system, or ransmitied in any form WIToUT _receming prior permission from Onesource, The London

Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham Property Services. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327



This page is intentionally left blank



Mudlands
Ind Est

+ Haverin

source «Ln}!m LONDON BOROUGH
at the heart of public services

Technical Services

River Chambers | High Street
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

rev/by date

g

amendment

SX2 Existing = I
La Salette Primary School

PR
Proposed = _
W La Salette Church Hall !

Lo i {

= e ——
Y 'J.' -
m—— W
N\ WL / T
f 4

o)
E"f' o Fol

N R
o \\1 N

AN

SX2 Polling Station Relocation
La Salette Primary School to
La Salette Church Hall

_—
Recreation Ground '::;E‘Q\

Sta _ f'f\
Supermarket A
Rainbam Will \ iy
Primary Schgi j‘iﬂﬁ% "fﬂﬂf
,_a-":" i ‘}L .

SX1

Ingreby
Hij

!
% L

Proposed Relocation Plan

drawn by nt drawing number
date, December 2020
-2 1
Page./1 1:5000 @ A4 SX2

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



e

ST RHIEEIINGD
5
al

—

prm— | \—"“-—_'_l
1
Sta s 10
e EAnA
Windmill TERRAGE ———
(disused)
[ 26r0 —EARDENS
ST_TAPABHCS WUALE BARC
gol - S
ta = =
by :
= z ~—
By - i Coborn
& 0 School \“\‘mx
lExisting= I ahior

Upminster Junior School

Upminster Park (7] ‘f\}j [Schs H

Liby Proposed =
Upminster Library

f/_J 3 !
_r
— 7 / o A |

e N wersTEee——————
Car Park : (—k ] | —‘ r‘i’*__w ASGENS

FE]

UPMINSTER

G L

T = W

E
EWE

iy

/
oy |

Sch oolsE

ul

GE—

=1

EOTEREEL s

CIA DRTVE

_CEDaR
INNIAY_2

——AERE]

— 3
—W
[
—

—
| e—— T
R
gl
B[RS
N
L

]

UP3 Polling Statfion Relocation

f Have |'i nq Upminster Junior School fo

one
source

Upminster Library N
at the heart of public services Pro posed Relocohon Plo n
Technlcol SeerceS rev/by  date amendment drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date December 2020 U P3
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 scale NTS
Copyngnt, ol ights reserved. No part of This document may be reproduced, stored in a refievable system, or Tansmified In any form wilhouT Teceming prior permission from Onesource, The London

Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham Property Services. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327



This page is intentionally left blank



ol - o /Ty :3-9’
v /| 5 o Ny
: I I : 7 —=
i ,'E:"’l ?ﬁr 5?‘7"}[;;::' !' 2 .-'l Sen
I'f-JlI ! .'.'E' :-gﬁ QI??
el A
=il ""H-_’l__._a_',_».‘;r--" |'l .--|| A
1) G q_'l "|l
o | 1= T e Sl — I,l | ? = [ _ Upminatar P
i =\ i "nn‘a— . it
Sl | o e Pl
A | r= "
| ‘ | e |' ' i<l ;' .' \ 8
[ = .'_4 g | Proposed =
[ il & b_" L ZR ¥ Gaynss '| | Brookdale Avenue ]
| - & ) (8 Farowy Scouts Hall
J 5 | g g b B [ e
Lu| - I;_I I- | F'—‘I[-j P A e 'If:‘II =
I-II = b \\\‘ .-"r?
L

BT

(T 1

Existing = !
Branfil Primary School | |

- e

TENE =
1) i
\ =
" |
. | [l » — e
W‘q}}%‘ %, | | ,"'\' > \‘?-___-____ - | [ s -EI._ Q'I
X, o > I-_.-".'__ -2 Sy = [3: .I
E : > _‘._. - 7 L -,.IL\ — TJL i F',
3 # | e =%
= / II |I
g \ / | e ¢
j :_-_‘J,.} 4 'l,?:';,_ l15 l'l Il'l,.l
-~ { et ) )
corges . 7~ UP6 R )]

hapiral # il =
' / f \\ L‘ﬁ*

I f | =
Sutions | / | \ \ 1{"‘
Parkway |'I | \ |'|
11 | A
|'I |II |'| l'. -,II e
Hacton Al o] Lot
I St e
Park Comear T ': —
Farm ==
.
P PI——— = Farklands ‘
/ e
[
i f
| Lidge Farm
| ‘III T o
III ' =l
llI I|II ) '.l\:..‘
1l I \-'k
Ill III NN y
f / N
Ralaham Lodga il Mursary \.
Farm | f A\

L
Eeniral Consges bt

UPé6 Polling Station Relocation
’K. & Haver| nq Branfil Primary School to

one 1
source e LoNpON Bonouan Brookdale Avenue Scouts Halll N

at the heart of public services Proposed Relocghon PlO n

. . rev/by date amendment
TeC h N |CG| S@I’VICGS drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date_, December 2020 U P6
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 Pageale/ o] 1:10000 @ A4

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



Gas Transmission
Station

e
pon Gd
Spars
Centre
Recn Gd Multistorey
Schools Car Park

AR
cen Proposed =
@® London Road Army Reserve Centre

Existing = -
A Crowlands School

N . BL3 Polling Station Relocation A
Qne Haverl NQ Crowlands School fo
source LonooN BoRoUGH London Road Army Reserve & TA Centre N
at the heart of public services PrO posed R elOCO ﬁO n Plo n
Technlccﬂ SerViceS rev/by date amendment drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date December 2020 B L3
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 scale NTS
Copyight, all fights reserved. No part of s document may be reproduced sTored n a refevable system, or fransmiffed in any form WiToUT receving prior perission from Onesource, The London

Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham Property Services. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327



This page is intentionally left blank



Ul =

S GONS _ CUMBFRLAND 4

CLEMENT WAY

AVE
CHEFSTOW AVENUE

i j,\ :
— w i L
TANDEN avEw & =
g E =
; E g
2 5 !
CENTRAL DR WE__E'
-\_-"_‘—‘—-—.
W § s
B
=
5]
B
e = act ary School
——-NLFRED Avrrne HN3
Existing =
Hacton Primary School
. e
Primary
VA E
—%MEEUE E‘ School
8
(=]
=
P
k2
Proposed =
Havering Christian Fellowship Hall
Newmarket Way
c?-::. \
L "er ]

HN3 Polling Station Relocation
Hacton Primary School to
Havering Christian Fellowship Hall

Havering

Jmis LONDON BOROUGH

one
source

Proposed Relocation Plan

The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327

at the heart of public services
. . rev/by date amendment
TeChﬂ|C0| S@I’VICGS drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date, December 2020 H N 3
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 Pa le NTS @ A4
Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,



This page is intentionally left blank



i
W) Hawverin
‘{?' g

Technical
College

. d -l A'?dpe"s'" = Maylands
Hatter's Wood A g — Golf Course
D CR N School
) § Pro;.)osed =
&2 = @ Drapers Pyrgo Priory School

| Former Childrens Centre Building
aper'ssi PriorjsSchool
Pyrgo Priory

i

" Duck Wood

(}

Existing =
~——__ Drapers Pyrgo Priory School

Bronkside.““
Primary R
Schools

Long Wood

Central Park
CH

Miniature
Golf Course

o Harold Hill  we%

Racraation Ground

Pavilion

Cricket

; \\ Ground
Community \

Centre

SO0

4
2

S EN
DL

=AY 4
OF
;)%G’\ ??%R" Loy,

\
"\

GS6 Polling Station Relocation A

@%% jﬁ Have[i nq Drapers Pyrgo Priory School to
source amme LONDON BOROUGH Drapers Pyrgo Priory School Former Nursery N

at the heart of public services Pro posed Relocohon Plo n
Tech nlCOl SeerceS rev/by date amendment drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date December 2020 GS 6
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 scale NTS

Copyright, all fights reserved. No part of fhis document may be reproduced, siored in d reflievable system, of fransmitted i any form WIloUT fecening prior permission from Onesource, The London
Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham Property Services. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327



This page is intentionally left blank



Proposed =
Collier Row Catholic Club

s

Existing =

LOVELLY

E"_E‘QFL s

St Patricks Catholic Primary School

5N

Miniature
Golf
Course

Recn Gd

| & Mg—fﬁﬁuﬂ

F—TADSTONE =45

g

w+ Havering

.LH;IUL LONDON BOROUGH

ane
source

at the heart of public services

rev/by

Technical Services
River Chambers | High Street

date

amendment

MNZ2 Polling Statfion Relocation
St Patricks Catholic Primary School to
Collier Row Catholic Club Hall

Proposed Relocation Plan

drawn by nt
date December 2020

A

drawing number

Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

MN2

Page NTS @ A4

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



>

£

R

Rise Park =
e

Schoals

Royal British Legion
Collier Row Lane

e 10

| REDRITE AOAD

Existing =
Parklands Junior

LINL School

Warehouse

PT3 Polling Station Relocation

Haverinq Parklands Junior School To

one
source

W LONDON BOROUGH Royal British Legion, Collier Row Lane N
at the heart of public services Proposed Re|OCOﬂOﬂ P|CI ﬂ
. . rev/by date amendment
TeC h N |CO| S@I’VICGS drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date December 2020
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 Pa I NTS @ A4 PT3

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



~ - " . - 7
el i PLE B
I l- 'r'r"l:_ AT
\ b
~ oo B ;
Y, oy oo "'?_l‘
Yl I i 4 3 o
o e | Lt
- d & 1_} 1 ‘{_ ﬁi-“i ST,
h R brve \ I I F w - iyl
Ak e ¢ N W :
Ay s . .@Brady Primary School
ﬁ-_L & "{. s':-f, ot oy 1o
W ¥ %, T Existing =
e [ = T N, *“5% % . Brady Primary School
S R P S FE N o
] g s e - Y :,# -
: ¥
. -
e .
= %*-‘-‘.v -l
| b L ya Wenmegumn ot
® ==
o Proposed =
= St Mary & Peter Church
Fsinharn Muritme
N RW2
'-\.\ i prmicgpivtmy Fuast ghas. ¥
. Warkinge
Worksings
RW3 Waennington Marshes
L Farmfvdre Marsha

yurce

at the heart of public services

TRERTY LONDON BOROUGH

rev/by date

Technical Services
River Chambers | High Street
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

a¢ Havering

amendment

RW3 Polling Statfion Relocation
Brady Primary School fo
St Mary & Peter Church N

Proposed Relocation Plan

drawn by nt
December 2020
NTS @ A4

drawing number

RW3

date

Page.87

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



0
..-").-

King Geurge’s-
Playing Fields
PR
3

P

aﬁ”ﬁom

Sports
Facility

Proposed =

Existing =
St John's Church
Community Hall

[ PortaKabin in St John's
v @' Church Car Park
StlJohn' urmy Ha

[
W
.

¢ Haverin

BL1 Polling Station Relocation
St John's Church Community Hall To

one ; T
source o vemeon somouan Portakabin in St John's Church Car Park N

at the heart of public services

Technical Services

River Chambers | High Street
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

rev/by

date

Proposed Relocation Plan

amendment
drawn by nt drawing number
date December 2020
Page NTS @ A4 B I— ]

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



Dgar Fark

Wislme
Caritie
Bedfords Park
Musrsary
%
da

Golf Courss

at the heart of public services

Technical Services

River Chambers | High Street
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343

Playground

rev/by

+Havering

»* LONDON BOROUGH

date

7
4 j/HEE"E‘m

Baflevue

5t Ursuln"s
RiC Schootn

Proposed =
~_—— St Dominics Church Hall  serestion G
St S cliks
N

=\

%
Hilkdana r\ y
Junior & Infant %é\ g i
Srohools .[__.-:____ M m'l
pacn 4 SV E B
I |
F -
y | : =
DR
\ & /'/’
Allorment r -_’_'::-r ;w ‘: \
Gaident it b
Existing = \ i
Heaton Way United L I:; 1 J-—:_

Reformed Church

Golf Coursa (

LIl

HT3 Polling Station Relocation
United Reform Church, Heaton Way To
St Dominic's Church Hall, Straight Road

Proposed Relocation Plan

amendment
drawn by nt drawing number
date December 2020 3
Page: NTS @ A4 HT

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,

The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327



This page is intentionally left blank



ﬁ EX|st|ng =
J' st Peters Church

" Proposed =
B 'r», The Ingrebourne Centre

HW3 Polling Station Relocation A
Qne ﬁ,‘?‘ Have” nq ST Peters Church fo
source mme LONPON BOROUGH The Ingrebourne Cen’rrg N

at the heart of public services Pro posed Reloco Tlon Plo n
Tec h nicol SerViceS rev/by date amendment drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date December 2020 H W3
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 scale NTS

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource, The London
Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham Property Services. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327



This page is intentionally left blank



&

— s
o — f;'s'f
hools ‘H,}ir:“a-; ,

Wi

I?r‘%z
_ —-_ Existing =
“~_7 HOPWA House
| Inskip Drive

a8

/

W ICL Flﬂ.k_ﬂi JE

LA

; e
| UL _E@,ﬁﬁz

i E
# ; z
- LN
i i
5 ) \
i < \
£
[gi \gl % ' = = Gaynes \'
one . ST3 Polling Station Relocation
&¢ Haverl NG HOPWA House, Inskip Drive fo
source mEs LONDON BOROUGH The Europa Centre, The Walk N
at the heart of public services feviby date amendment Proposed Re|OCCIﬂOﬂ P|Oﬂ
TeC h ﬂiCO| SerViCGS drawn by nt drawing number
River Chambers | High Street date December 2020 ST3
Romford |RM1 THR |Tel: 01708 434343 Pa I NTS @ A4

Copyright, all rights reserved. No part of this document may be reproduced, stored in a retrievable system, or transmitted in any form without receiving prior permission from OneSource,
The London Borough of Havering & The London Borough of Newham. © Crown copyright and database rights 2020 Ordnance Survey 100024327




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 PROTOCOL ON THE OPERATION OF GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC RESTRICTIONS
	5 MINUTES
	Minutes
	5 APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER ORGANISATIONS, 2020/2021
	APPOINTMENTS other organisations2020execMASTER Governance


	6 APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER ORGANISATIONS 2020/21
	7 STAFF EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES
	Governance Committee Report 2021-01-13 Staff Employment Procedure Rules - Appendix A
	Governance Committee Report 2021-01-13 Staff Employment Procedure Rules - Appendix B
	Governance Committee Report 2021-01-13 Staff Employment Procedure Rules - Appendix C

	8 TEMPORARY CHANGES TO POLLING STATIONS DUE TO COVID19 - GLA ELECTIONS 6th MAY 2021
	appendix 1
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 2
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 3
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 4
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 5
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 6
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 7
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 8
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 9
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 10
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 11
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Appendix 12
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendx13
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendix 14
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendix 15
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendix 16
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendix 17
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendix 18
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendix 19
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendix 20
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendix 21
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	appendix 22
	Sheets and Views
	Model




